Management Discussion and Analysis

Independent Auditors’ Report

Hope Enterprise Corporation (HEC) received an unmodified, or ‘clean’ audit for FY 2023.

Balance Sheet Analysis

HEC’s total assets stood at $298 million on December 31, 2023, up $25 million from December 31, 2022
driven primarily by a $27 million increase in Loans Receivable, comprised mainly of $34 million in
additional NMTC investments, and partially offset by a $9 million decrease of in HEC’s PPP loan portfolio.
At the end of 2023, HEC’s PPP portfolio had paid down to $4.8 million from a high point of more than
$140 million in 2021. The effect of these transactions on HEC's capital position is summarized below:

2023 2022
Unrestricted 10.8% 14.3%
Noncontrolling Interests 57.4% 52.4%
Total Unrestricted 68.2% 66.7%
With Donor Restrictions 6.2% 6.4%
Total Net Assets 74.4% 73.1%

As reflected below, loans and investments comprise the majority of HEC’s assets:

2023 2022
Loans Receivable - net $186,603,701 $159,596,706
Investment in Secondary Capital of HCU $38,035,775 $38,035,775
Total $224,639,476 $197,632,481
Percent of Total Assets 75.3% 72.3%

Notes payable decreased from $65.9 million at December 31, 2022 to $64.1 million at December 31,
2023. The Federal Reserve Bank (FRP) PPP funding decreased by $7.2 million in 2023 as the PPP portfolio
continued to pay off. The PPP funding decrease was partially offset by $5 million of additional bank debt
related to a new program whereby HEC provides low-cost debt to CDFls in its region. This activity is
expected expand in 2024.

Earnings Analysis

Total revenue for 2023 was $20.7 million as compared to $14.6 million for 2022, and expenses were
$25.4 million in 2023 as compared to $15.1 million for 2022. The $6.1 million increase in revenue was
primarily due to increases in Grants and Contributions ($1.9 million) and Investment Revenue ($4.2
million). The Investment Revenue line item includes unrealized gains/losses in the investment portfolio.
None of the gains/losses are related to credit issues in the underlying investments but change due to the
returns of the securities relative to market changes in interest rates. HEC’s Grant Revenue does not
reflect $4.9 million of additional revenue expected in 2023, but deferred to 2024 due to delays in receipt
of the funding.



The growth in operating expenses was primarily attributable to the following increases: (i) $7 million in
operational support for Hope Credit Union, (ii) $S1.1 million in pass-thru grants for community
development work, and (iii) $1.7 million in Contractual Services. The increased operating support for
HCU was primarily related to deferred grant revenue at HCU of more than S4 million. This grant revenue
is expected to be recognized in 2024.

Earned revenue, as described below, increased to $5.2 million in 2023 from $5.0 million in 2022 due to
increases in revenue from Debt Securities ($4.2 million) and Contract Services ($0.3 million). Contributed
revenue increased to $14.8 million in 2023 from $12.9 million in 2022.

Differences between earned revenue in 2023 and 2022 are summarized in the following schedule:

2023 2022

Interest, dividends, and related fees:
Loans and other investments $2,665,074 $2,581,338
Debt securities and cash equivalents $2,034,100 (2,210,252)
Gain (loss) on sale of assets and investments (583,209) 362,467
Contract Services Revenues $1,283,341 969,792
Earned Revenue - Gross $5,899,306 $1,703,345
Unrealized Gains (Losses) on Securities (5729,193) (3,250,290)
Total Earned Revenue — Net $5,170,113 $4,953,635

Non-Controlling Net Income decreased slightly to (5845,294) in 2023 from ($536,340) in 2022, with the
Change in Net Assets Attributable to Controlling Interest decreasing to ($5,594,412) in 2023 from
(5998,010) in 2022. As discussed above, HEC had to defer almost $5 million in grant revenue to 2024 in
addition to increasing support for HCU for a similar reason. All of the deferred grant revenue is expected
to be recognized in 2024.

With more than $40 million of unrestricted cash and securities at 12/31/2023, HEC continues to
maintain adequate sources of liquidity to fund loan demand and operations.

bR WA

Alan Branson William Bynum
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer
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\ A CLAconnect.com
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Directors
Hope Enterprise Corporation
Jackson, Mississippi

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hope Enterprise Corporation
and entities under its control (the Company), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial

position as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related consolidated statements of activities and
cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Hope Enterprise Corporation and entities under its control as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the changes in its consolidated net assets and its consolidated cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, effective January 1, 2023, the Company adopted
new accounting guidance for the measurement of credit losses on financial instruments. Our opinion is
not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there
are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date the consolidated financial statements
are available to be issued.

CLAglobal.com/disclaimer
(1)



Board of Directors
Hope Enterprise Corporation

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The supplementary information included in the following consolidating or
combining statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS.

)



Board of Directors
Hope Enterprise Corporation

In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole.

WMW L7

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 28, 2024
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HOPE ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash

Grant and Other Receivables
Contract Revenue Receivable
Due from Affiliates

Loans Receivable

Allowance for Credit Losses
Investment Securities
Investment in Secondary Capital of HFCU
Property and Equipment, Net
Other Assets

Right-of-Use Asset

Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Payable to Hope Federal Credit Union
Deferred Revenue
Notes Payable
Lease Liability
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Without Donor Restrictions
Noncontrolling Interests
Total Without Donor Restrictions
With Donor Restrictions
Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(4)

2023 2022

$ 32,775,012 $ 36,596,423
7,430,172 4,136,758
2,015,058 1,395,646
166,985 468,840

- 2,575,199
190,089,798 163,466,828
(3,486,097) (3,870,122)
29,060,416 28,147,278
38,035,775 38,035,775
1,667,546 2,010,707
542,694 446,942
144,451 84,341

$ 298,441,810 $ 273,494,615
$ 3,502,917 $ 2,787,306
1,008,457 -
7,441,799 4,894,146
64,114,197 65,856,391
171,584 86,052
76,238,954 73,623,895
32,350,450 39,063,096
171,220,109 143,293,561
203,570,559 182,356,657
18,632,297 17,514,063
222,202,856 199,870,720
$ 298,441,810 $ 273,494,615




HOPE ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total
REVENUES AND GAINS (LOSSES)
Grants and Contributions $ 13,296,215 $ 1,473,000 $ 14,769,215
Interest, Dividends, and Related Fees:

Loans and Other Investments 2,665,074 - 2,665,074
Investment Income, Net 2,034,100 - 2,034,100
Other Gains 79,876 - 79,876
Contract Services Revenue 1,283,341 - 1,283,341
Miscellaneous Loss (163,085) - (163,085)

Subtotal 19,195,521 1,473,000 20,668,521
Net Assets Release from Restrictions:
Satisfaction of Program Restrictions 354,766 (354,766) -
Total Revenues and Gains 19,550,287 1,118,234 20,668,521
EXPENSES
Program Expenses:

Development Finance 10,968,461 - 10,968,461

Housing Initiative 601,157 - 601,157

Policy and Advocacy 708,728 - 708,728

Other Programs 5,958,952 - 5,958,952

Total Program Expenses 18,237,298 - 18,237,298
Supporting Services:
General and Administration 6,703,623 - 6,703,623
Fundraising and Communication 476,718 - 476,718
Total Expenses 25,417,639 - 25,417,639
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE
NONCONTROLLING INTEREST (5,867,352) 1,118,234 (4,749,118)
Noncontrolling Interests in Subsidiaries' Net Income (845,294) - (845,294)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO
CONTROLLING INTEREST (6,712,646) 1,118,234 (5,594,412)
Net Assets Attributable to Controlling Interests -
Beginning of Year 39,063,096 17,514,063 56,577,159
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO CONTROLLING
INTERESTS - END OF YEAR 32,350,450 18,632,297 50,982,747
Net Assets of Noncontrolling Interests 171,220,109 - 171,220,109
NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 203,570,559 $ 18,632,297 $ 222,202,856

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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HOPE ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

REVENUES AND GAINS (LOSSES)
Grants and Contributions
Contributions of Nonfinancial Assets
Interest, Dividends, and Related Fees:

Loans and Other Investments
Investment Decline, Net
Other Gains
Contract Services Revenue
Miscellaneous Loss
Subtotal
Net Assets Release from Restrictions:
Satisfaction of Program Restrictions
Total Revenues and Gains

EXPENSES
Program Expenses:
Development Finance
Housing Initiative
Policy and Advocacy
Other Programs
Total Program Expenses
Supporting Services:
General and Administration Expense
Fundraising and Communication
Total Expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE
NONCONTROLLING INTEREST

Noncontrolling Interests in Subsidiaries' Net Income

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO

CONTROLLING INTEREST

Net Assets Attributable to Controlling Interests -

Beginning of Year

NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO CONTROLLING

INTERESTS - END OF YEAR
Net Assets of Noncontrolling Interests

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

$ 12,319,744 $ 610,600 $ 12,930,344
5,000 - 5,000
2,581,338 - 2,581,338
(2,210,252) - (2,210,252)
463,259 - 463,259
969,792 - 969,792
(100,792) - (100,792)
14,028,089 610,600 14,638,689
886,336 (886,336) -
14,914,425 (275,736) 14,638,689
3,820,519 - 3,820,519
532,705 - 532,705
747,517 - 747,517
3,313,113 - 3,313,113
8,413,854 - 8,413,854
6,200,192 - 6,200,192
486,313 - 486,313
15,100,359 - 15,100,359
(185,934) (275,736) (461,670)
(536,340) - (536,340)
(722,274) (275,736) (998,010)
39,785,370 17,789,799 57,575,169
39,063,096 17,514,063 56,577,159
143,293,561 - 143,293,561

$ 182,356,657 $ 17,514,063 $ 199,870,720

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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HOPE ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in Net Assets Attributable to Controlling Interests $

Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Net
Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Noncontrolling Interests in Subsidiaries' Net Income
Depreciation and Amortization
Loss on Extinguishment of Debt
Noncash Lease Expense
Provision for Credit Losses
Forgiveness of Mortgage Loan Debt
Equity in Affiliate
Realized and Unrealized Net (Gains) Losses on Investments
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
Contract Revenue Receivable
Grants Receivable
Due from Affiliate
Other Receivables and Prepaid Expenses
Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities
Payable to HFCU
Deferred Revenue

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(Increase) Decrease in Loans Held for Investment
Increase (Decrease) in Allowance for Credit Losses
Purchases of Investments
Proceeds from Maturities and Sales of Investments
Purchase of Property and Equipment

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Return of Capital Contributions to Noncontrolling Interests
Cash Dividends Paid to Noncontrolling Interests
Proceeds from Issuance of Notes Payable
Payments on Long-Term Borrowings

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND
RESTRICTED CASH

Cash, Cash Equivalents, Restricted Cash - Beginning of Year

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED CASH - END OF YEAR _$

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash Paid for Interest $

2023 2022

(5,594,412)  $  (998,010)
845,294 536,340
411,342 410,692

- 445,289

25,422 1,711
(69,739) 480,095
714,439 620,137

- 1,187,725

(729,193) 3,261,512
301,855 (360,650)
(619,412) (509,541)
2,575,199 (1,044,771)
(95,752) (6,767)
715,611 221,760
1,008,457 i
2,547,653 (2,152,068)
2,036,764 2,093,454
(27,267,670) (2,429,184)
(384,025) 32,344
(682,897) (5,004,248)
498,952 4,050,096
(68,181) (466,675)
(27,903,821) (3,817,667)
28,950,000 35,000,000
(1,868,746) (1,587,949)
7,116,519 7,647,509
(8,858,713) (30,247,156)
25,339,060 10,812,404
(527,997) 9,088,191
40,733,181 31,644,990

40205184 _$ 40,733,181
1,287,710 _$ 1,146,425

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NOTE 1

HOPE ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of the Company

Hope Enterprise Corporation (the Company) is a nonprofit community development financial
institution (CDFI) primarily serving Alabama, Arkansas, Louisiana, Mississippi, and
Tennessee. The goal of the Company is to improve the regional economy through
investment, jobs, and growth. The services of the Company include financing, management
assistance, financial counseling, and market development and are designed to support
business creation and expansion, homeownership, and community development.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) and include the
accounts of the Company and entities under its control which include, ECD Investments,
LLC (ECDI), Home Again, Inc. (Home Again), and twenty-two additional limited liability
companies. All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in
consolidation. The preparation of such consolidated financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the
consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The allowance
for loan losses and the valuation of foreclosed property and investments are determined
utilizing material estimates that are particularly susceptible to change in the near term.

ECDI is a limited liability company subsidiary of the Company. The purpose of ECDI is the
same as that of the Company. Home Again is a nonprofit organization in which the
Company serves as the primary sponsor and also controls the board of directors. Home
Again provides mortgage financing and recovery consultation services to eligible people in
the coastal region of Mississippi in the aftermath of Hurricane Katrina and other distressed
communities throughout the mid-south.

There are also twenty-two additional limited liability companies included in the consolidated
financial statements of the Company. The Company serves as the Managing Member of all
twenty-two entities. Debt and equity funding into two of those entities ECD Associates, LLC
(ECDA) and ECD New Markets, LLC (ECDNM) is used for secondary capital loans and
contributions to Hope Federal Credit Union (HFCU). The remaining twenty limited liability
companies are Community Development Entities (CDEs) created for investors to benefit
from the New Markets Tax Credit program administered by the U.S. Department of the
Treasury. Substantially all of the qualified equity investments must be in turn used to provide
available investment capital to low-income communities. The CDEs will dissolve after the
loans provided by the CDEs mature, in accordance with the terms of the CDE operating
agreements.

(8)



NOTE 1

HOPE ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less
when purchased to be cash equivalents.

At December 31, 2023, the Company’s cash accounts exceeded federally insured limits.
Although balances at each institution are insured up to $250,000, management believes
cash held in excess of these limits subjects the Company to minimal risk.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash represents funding from restricted grants and debt that may only be used for
specified purposes and not for general corporate matters. Interest income on these funds is
included in revenue.

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2023 totaling $32,775,012, and restricted cash
totaling $7,430,172, as included on the consolidated statement of financial position, equal
total cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash shown of the consolidated statement of
cash flows of $40,205,184. Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2022 totaling
$36,596,423, and restricted cash totaling $4,136,758, as included on the consolidated
statement of financial position, equal total cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash
shown of the consolidated statement of cash flows of $40,733,181.

Grants and Contributions Receivable and Revenue

Unconditional grants and contributions are recognized as revenue in the period the
commitment is received. Unconditional grants and contributions to be received over a period
of time in excess of one year are recorded at fair value at the date of the grant based upon
the present value of payments to be received. Conditional grants and contributions are
those with a measurable performance or other barrier and a right of return and are not
recognized until the conditions have been met. Contributions received totaling $7,441,799
and $4,894,146 at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, have been recognized in the
accompanying consolidated statement of financial position as deferred revenue because the
conditions on which they depend have not yet been met. Management considers all grants
and contributions receivable to be fully collectible and therefore no allowance for
uncollectible amounts is necessary. The Company has received $4,284,317 of conditional
grants that have not been recognized because the conditions have not been met as of year-
end.

Donated Goods and Services

During the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 Home Again received donated gift
cards totaling $-0- and $5,000, respectively.

Home Again estimates the fair value of donated goods and services on the basis of
estimates of the current market rates for similar supplies and services.
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NOTE 1

HOPE ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Donated Goods and Services (Continued)

Contributed gift cards were utilized by Home Again’s program. There were no donor-
imposed restrictions associated with the donated items. During the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022 Home Again did not monetize any donated goods.

During the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company did not receive any
donated services.

Contract Services Revenue and Related Receivables

Contract services revenue is recognized in the period services are rendered. For related
receivables, no allowance for doubtful accounts has been deemed necessary. Management
determines the allowance by reviewing all outstanding amounts on a monthly basis,
identifying troubled accounts, and using historical experience applied to an aging of
accounts. Contract receivables are written off when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of
contract receivables previously written off are recorded when received.

The Company receives New Markets Tax Credit (NMTC) allocations as a Community
Development Entity (CDE). Revenue from the allocation service fee is recognized when the
sub-CDE created by the Company obtains a qualified low-income community investment
(QLICI). These fees are included in contract services revenue on the consolidated
statements of activities. During the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, revenue
from these fees totaled $715,550 and $550,001, respectively.

The Company receives fees from the Small Business Administration for originating loans
under the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP). Revenue from the origination service fees is
recognized when the loan is originated. These fees are included in contract services
revenue on the consolidated statement of activities. During the years ended December 31,
2023 and 2022, revenue from these fees totaled $225 and $27,000, respectively.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is an exit price, representing the amount that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. The
Company utilizes a fair value hierarchy for measuring fair value that maximizes the use of
observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs. Three levels of inputs are
used to measure fair value:

Level 1 — Valuations based on unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets in active
markets accessible at the measurement date.

Level 2 — Valuations derived from (i) quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active
markets; (ii) quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;
(i) inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; and
(iv) inputs that are derived principally from, or corroborated by, observable market data
by correlation or other means.
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NOTE 1

HOPE ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

Level 3 — Valuations derived from unobservable (supported by little or no market activity)
inputs that reflect an entity's best estimate of what hypothetical market participants
would use to determine a transaction price at the reporting date.

When quoted market prices in active markets are unavailable, the Company determines fair
values using various valuation techniques and models based on a range of observable
market inputs including pricing models, quoted market price of publicly traded securities with
similar duration and yield, time value, yield curve, prepayment speeds, default rates and
discounted cash flow. In most cases, these estimates are determined based on independent
third party valuation information, and the amounts are disclosed in the Level 2 of the fair
value hierarchy. If quoted market prices and independent third party valuation information
are unavailable, the Company produces an estimate of fair value based on internally
developed valuation techniques, which, depending on the level of observable market inputs,
will render the fair value estimate as Level 2 or Level 3.

The Company generally obtains one quoted market price or dealer quote per instrument.
When dealer quotations are used, the Company uses the mid-mark as fair value. As part of
the price verification process, valuations based on quotes are corroborated by comparison
both to other quotes and to recent trading activity in the same or similar instruments. To the
extent the Company determines a price or quote is inconsistent with actual trading activity
observed in that investment or similar investments, or if the Company does not believe the
quote is reflective of the market value for the investment, the Company would internally
develop a fair value using this observable market information.

Loans Receivable

Loans receivable are stated at the amount of unpaid principal, less an allowance for credit
losses, and consist of commercial loans, consumer mortgage loans, and forgivable
mortgage loans. The commercial loans are typically collateralized by property, equipment,
inventories, and/or receivables and are generally guaranteed by the principals of the
borrowing business entity.

(1)



NOTE 1

HOPE ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Loans Receivable (Continued)

Interest income is computed on the loan balance outstanding and is accrued as earned.
Loans are considered past due if the required principal and interest payments have not been
received as of the date such payments are due. Unless collection of interest is reasonably
certain, as in the case of a government guarantee, the Company generally discontinues the
accrual of interest and recognizes income only as received for loans 90 days or more past
due. A loan may also be placed in nonaccrual status when, in management’s judgment, the
collection of interest is doubtful. All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are
placed in nonaccrual status or charged off is reversed through interest income unless
management believes the accrued interest is recoverable through the liquidation of
collateral. Interest received on nonaccrual loans is either applied against principal or
reported as interest income, based on management’s assessment regarding the recovery of
principal. The Company has determined that the impact of capitalizing nonrefundable fees
and other costs is not significant. These costs have been expensed as incurred.
Management has also issued loans at below-market rates. Interest income from these loans
is imputed based on the market rate offered to those of a similar type. Imputed interest is
approximately $41,000 as of December 31, 2023 and 2022.

A loan is considered impaired when it is probable, based on current information and events,
that the Company will be unable to collect all principal and interest payments due in
accordance with the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Impaired loans are measured
by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective
interest rate, the loan’s obtainable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan
is collateral dependent. The amount of impairment, if any, and any subsequent changes are
included in the allowance for credit losses. Interest on accruing impaired loans is recognized
as long as such loans do not meet the criteria for nonaccrual status.

Loans receivable also include forgivable mortgage loans that are made to accommodate the
financial needs of qualifying customers. The terms of these loans differ significantly from
traditional mortgage loans since they are forgivable over a stated period of time, typically
from 5 to 15 years, and only become due upon on the sale or transfer of the residence. No
principal or interest payments are received for loans made under the forgivable mortgage
loan programs. Persons receiving loans under the forgivable mortgage loan programs must
meet certain eligibility requirements and agree to occupy the residence for a stated period of
time. The Company holds a secured interest in the property until the occupancy period is
met. At such time, the interest in the property is transferred to the borrower. No allowance
for credit losses has been deemed necessary based on the forgivable nature of the loans
and management’s evaluation of the excess of the value of the collateral securing the loans
over the unforgiven portion of the mortgage loans. The Company recorded approximately
$714,000 and $620,000 in debt forgiveness during 2023 and 2022, respectively, related to
these mortgage loans.
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NOTE 1

HOPE ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Loans Receivable (Continued)

As of December 31, 2023, the Company has a conditional promise to forgive the following
amounts over the next five years:

Years Ending December 31, Amount
2024 $ 395,207
2025 227,915
2026 200,832
2027 191,457
2028 186,082
Thereafter 1,009,927
Total $ 2,211,420

Allowance for Loan Losses

Effective, January 1, 2023, the allowance for credit losses on loans is a valuation account
that is deducted from the amortized cost basis of loans to present the net amount expected
to be collected. The allowance for credit losses on loans is adjusted through the provision
for credit losses to the amount of amortized cost basis not expected to be collected at the
balance sheet date. Loan losses are charged off against the allowance for credit losses on
loans when the Company determines the loan balance to be uncollectible. Cash received on
previously charged off amounts is recorded as a recovery to the allowance for credit losses
on loans.

The measurement of expected credit losses encompasses information about historical
events, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts. Historical credit loss
experience provides the basis for the estimation of expected credit losses. Qualitative
adjustments to historical loss information are made for differences in current loan-specific
risk characteristics such as differences in underwriting standards, portfolio mix, or
delinquencies, as well as for changes in environmental conditions, such as changes in
unemployment rates, property values, or other relevant factors.

Expected credit losses are estimated on a collective basis for groups of loans that share
similar risk characteristics. Factors that may be considered in aggregating loans for this
purpose include but are not necessarily limited to, product or collateral type and internal risk
ratings. For loans that do not share similar risk characteristics with other loans such as
collateral dependent loans, expected credit losses are estimated on an individual basis.

Expected credit losses are estimated over the contractual terms of the loans, adjusted for
expected prepayments. The contractual term excludes expected extensions, renewals, and
modifications unless the extension or renewal options are included in the original or modified
contract at the reporting date and are not unconditionally cancellable by the Company.
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NOTE 1

HOPE ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

Loans are charged off against the allowance for credit losses on loans in the period in which
they are deemed uncollectible and recoveries are credited to the allowance for credit losses
on loans when received. Expected recoveries on loans previously charged off and expected
to be charged-off are included in the allowance for credit losses on loans estimate. Once
loans are downgraded to substandard, an assessment of collateral value is made; any
outstanding loan balance in excess of fair value less cost to sell is charged off at no later
than 180 days delinquency. Additionally, any outstanding balance in excess of fair value of
collateral less cost to sell is charged off when the asset is foreclosed by the Company.
Commercial and other mortgage loans are charged off when, in management's judgment,
they are considered to be uncollectible.

The Company utilized the weighted average remaining maturity (WARM) method in
determining expected future credit losses for each of the loan categories. The WARM
method considers an estimate of expected credit losses over the remaining life of the
financial assets and uses average annual charge-off rates to estimate the allowance for
credit losses. For amortizing assets, the remaining contractual life is adjusted by the
expected scheduled payments and prepayments. The average annual charge-off rate is
applied to the amortization-adjusted remaining life to determine the unadjusted lifetime
historical charge-off rate.

The Company’s expected loss estimate is anchored in historical credit loss experience, with
an emphasis on all available portfolio data. The Company’s historical look—back period
annual loss rates vary for each loan segment but extend back to 2020 through the current
period. When historical credit loss experience is not sufficient for a specific portfolio, the
entity may supplement its own portfolio data with external models or data.

Qualitative reserves reflect management’s overall estimate of the extent to which current
expected credit losses on collectively evaluated loans will differ from historical loss
experience. The analysis takes into consideration other analytics performed within the
organization, such as enterprise and concentration management, along with other credit—
related analytics as deemed appropriate. Management attempts to quantify qualitative
reserves whenever possible. The CECL methodology applied focuses on evaluation of
qualitative and environmental factors, including but not limited to: (i) evaluation of facts and
issues related to specific loans; (ii) management’s ongoing review and grading of the loan
portfolio; (iii) consideration of historical loan loss and delinquency experience on each
portfolio segment; (iv) trends in past due and nonperforming loans; (v) the risk
characteristics of the various loan segments; (vi) changes in the size and character of the
loan portfolio; (vii) concentrations of loans to specific borrowers or industries; (viii) existing
economic conditions; (ix) the fair value of underlying collateral; and (x) other qualitative and
quantitative factors which could affect expected credit losses.
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NOTE 1

HOPE ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

The Company’s CECL estimate applies a forecast that incorporates macroeconomic trends
and other environmental factors. Management utilized national, regional, and local leading
economic indexes, as well as management judgment, as the basis for the forecast period.
The historical loss rate was utilized as the base rate, and qualitative adjustments were
utilized to reflect the forecast and other relevant factors.

The Company establishes a specific reserve for individually evaluated loans which do not
share similar risk characteristics with the loans evaluated from a collective or pooled basis.
These individually evaluated loans are removed from the pooling approach discussed above
for the quantitative baseline and include nonaccrual loans and other loans deemed
appropriate by management.

Although management believes the allowance for credit losses on loans to be adequate,
ultimate losses may vary from its estimates. At least quarterly, the board of directors reviews
the adequacy of the allowance for credit losses on loans, including consideration of the
relevant risks in the portfolio, current economic conditions, and other factors.

Prior to the adoption of ASC 326, the Company used an incurred loss model to measure an
allowance for loan losses.
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NOTE 1

HOPE ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

The Company assigns a risk rating to commercial loans and periodically performs detailed
internal reviews of all such loans over a certain threshold to identify credit risks and to
assess the overall collectability of the portfolio. During the internal reviews, management
monitors and analyzes the financial condition of borrowers and guarantors, trends in the
industries in which the borrowers operate and the fair values of collateral securing the loans.
These credit quality indicators are used to assign a risk rating to each individual loan. The
risk ratings can be grouped into the following major categories, defined as follows:

Pass: Loans classified as Pass are loans with no existing or known potential
weaknesses deserving of management’s close attention.

Special Mention: Loans classified as Special Mention have a potential weakness that
deserves management's close attention. If left uncorrected, this potential weakness may
result in deterioration of the repayment prospects for the loan or of the institution's credit
position at some future date. Special Mention loans are not adversely classified and do
not expose the Company to sufficient risk to warrant adverse classification.

Substandard: Loans classified as Substandard are not adequately protected by the
current net worth and paying capacity of the borrower or of the collateral pledged, if any.
Loans classified as Substandard have a well-defined weakness or weaknesses that
jeopardize the repayment of the debt. Well defined weaknesses include a borrower’'s
lack of marketability, inadequate cash flow or collateral support, failure to complete
construction on time, or the failure to fulfil economic expectations. They are
characterized by the distinct possibility that the Company will sustain some loss if the
deficiencies are not corrected.

Doubtful: Loans classified as Doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in those
classified as Substandard, with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make
collection or repayment in full, on the basis of currently existing facts, conditions, and
values, highly questionable and improbable.

Loss: Loans classified as Loss are considered uncollectible and anticipated to be
charged off.

Investment Securities

Investment securities are carried at fair value based on quoted market prices. Unrealized
gains and losses are included in the change in net assets. The primary components that
determine a security’s fair value are its coupon rate, maturity and credit characteristics. The
Company holds these securities as part of its asset/liability strategy and they may be sold as
a result of changes in interest rate risk, prepayment risk or other similar economic factors.
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NOTE 1

HOPE ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment Securities (Continued)

Premiums and discounts on investment securities are recognized as adjustments to interest
income by the interest method over the period to maturity and are adjusted for prepayments
as applicable. The specific identification method is used to compute the realized gains or
losses on the sale of these assets. Security purchases and sales are accounted for on the
trade date.

Investment in Affiliated Companies

The Company held a 47.63% equity interest in Homestead Development, LLC (Homestead).
The investment is accounted for using the equity method of accounting since the Company
does not have a controlling interest. Homestead Development, LLC was liquidated during
the year ended December 31, 2022.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, if purchased, and estimated fair value at the date
received, if donated to the Company. Depreciation on property and equipment is calculated
principally by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets which
generally range from three to 39 years. The carrying value of long-lived assets is reviewed if
facts and circumstances indicate a potential impairment of carrying value may have
occurred utilizing relevant cash flow and profitability information. Impairment losses are
recorded when the undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by those assets are
less than the assets' carrying amounts.

Foreclosed Property

Property acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure is held for sale and is initially
recorded at the fair value of the property acquired at the date of foreclosure net of estimated
selling costs, which establishes a new cost basis. Loan balances in excess of the fair value
of the property acquired at the date of foreclosure are charged to the allowance for loan
losses.

A valuation allowance and a corresponding charge to operations is established to reflect
declines in value subsequent to acquisition, if any, below the new basis. Required
developmental costs associated with foreclosed property under construction are capitalized
and considered in determining the fair value of the property. Operating expenses of such
properties, net of related income, and gains and losses on their disposition are included in
program expenses.
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NOTE 1

HOPE ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of
donor or grantor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are
classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions — Net assets available for use in general
operations and not subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions — Net assets subject to donor- (or certain grantor-)
imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as
those that will be met by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor.
Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that
resources be maintained in perpetuity. Gifts of long-lived assets and gifts of cash
restricted for the acquisition of long-lived assets are recognized as restricted revenue
when received and released from restrictions when the assets are placed in service.
Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires, that is, when the
stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was
restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

Income Taxes

The Company and Home Again have received rulings from the Internal Revenue Service for
exemption from income taxes as public charities under Internal Revenue Code Sections
501(c)(3) and 509 (a)(2). Since ECDI, ECDA, ECDNM, and the eighteen New Market Tax
Credit entities are limited liability companies, no income taxes are provided. Additionally, two
New Market Tax Credit entities are taxed as a C corporation and are subject to income
taxes.

Potential exposures involving tax positions taken that may be challenged by taxing
authorities contain assumptions based upon past experiences and judgments about
potential actions by taxing jurisdictions. Management does not believe that the ultimate
settlement of these items will result in a material amount. With minimum exceptions, the
Company is no longer subject to income tax examinations prior to 2018.

Change in Accounting Principles

On January 1, 2023, the Company adopted ASU 2016-03, Financial Instruments — Credit
Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, as amended
(ASC 326), which replaces the incurred loss methodology with an expected loss
methodology that is referred to as the current expected credit loss methodology (CECL).
The measurement of expected credit losses under CECL is applicable to financial assets
measured at amortized cost, including loan receivables and held to maturity securities. It
also applies to off-balance sheet credit exposures such as loan commitments and standby
letters of credit
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NOTE 2

HOPE ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Change in Accounting Principles (Continued)

The Company adopted the standard using the modified retrospective method for all financial
assets measured at amortized cost and for off-balance sheet credit exposures. Results for
annual periods beginning after January 1, 2023 are presented under the new CECL model
while prior reporting periods continue to be reported in accordance with previously
applicable GAAP. The Company recorded an immaterial entry to retained earnings as of
January 1, 2023 representing the cumulative effect of adopting this standard.

On March 31, 2022, FASB issued ASU 2022-02, Financial Instruments—Credit Losses
(Topic 326) Troubled Debt Restructurings and Vintage Disclosures, which eliminates the
troubled debt restructuring (“TDR”), accounting model for creditors that have adopted Topic
326, Financial Instruments — Credit Losses. In addition, on a prospective basis, entities will
be subject to new disclosure requirements covering modifications of receivables to
borrowers experiencing financial difficulty. Upon adoption of this guidance, the Company no
longer establishes a specific reserve for modifications made on or after January 1, 2023 to
borrowers experiencing financial difficulty. Instead, these modifications are included in their
respective loan segment in the allowance for credit losses on loans. The Company has
adopted ASU 2022-02 effective on January 1, 2023. The adoption of this standard did not
have a material effect on the Company’s operating results or financial condition

Subsequent Events

In connection with the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, management of
the Company evaluated subsequent events through March 28, 2024, which was the date the
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

GRANT AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
The Company’s management anticipates grant receivables will be received and available for

support of the Company’s programs. The makeup of grant and other receivables are as
follows:

2023 2022
Grant Receivable in Less Than One Year $ 1,403,043 $ 677,500
Grant Receivable in One to Five Years 257,750 535,000
Subtotal 1,660,793 1,212,500
Less: Adjustment to Reflect Grant Receivables at Fair
Value at the Date of Grant, Based on 2.5% Discount
Rate in 2023 and 2022 (13,712) (25,990)
Total Grant Receivables 1,647,081 1,186,510
Other Receivables Due in Less Than One Year 367,977 209,136

Total Grant and Other Receivables $ 2,015,058 $ 1,395,646
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NOTE 4

HOPE ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

At December 31, 2023 and 2022, the only items carried at fair value in the accompanying
consolidated statements of financial position were investment securities, certain collateral-
dependent impaired loans, and certain foreclosed property. Investment securities are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis with changes in fair value recognized as a
change in net assets, whereas impaired loans and foreclosed property are carried at the
lower of cost or fair value on a nonrecurring basis and are written down to fair value upon
initial recognition or subsequent impairment. Fair value amounts for collateral-dependent
loans are generally based on internally developed collateral valuations. These valuations
incorporate measures such as recent sales prices for comparable properties or customized
discounting criteria.

The fair value measurements by input level follow:

December 31, 2023
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investment Securities $ - $ 29,060,416 $ - $ 29,060,416

December 31, 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investment Securities $ - $ 28,147,278 $ - $ 28,147,278

INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Investment securities, presented in the consolidated financial statements at fair value, are
categorized as follows:

December 31, 2023

Amortized
Cost Fair Value
Government Agencies $ 2,152,475 $ 1,979,030
Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities 17,633,958 15,942,166
Treasuries 1,275,484 1,199,877
US Treasury Bonds 4,424,451 4,165,580
Municipal Bonds 6,325,671 5,773,763
Total $ 31,812,039 $ 29,060,416
December 31, 2022
Amortized
Cost Fair Value
Government Agencies $ 2,152,457 $ 1,892,497
Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities 19,242,827 17,170,047
Treasuries 98,578 98,578
US Treasury Bonds 4,395,102 3,981,728
Municipal Bonds 5,762,657 5,004,428
Total $ 31,651,621 $ 28,147,278
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HOPE ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

The amortized cost and approximate fair value of investment securities, by expected
maturity, are shown below.

December 31, 2023

Amortized
Cost Fair Value
US Treasury and Municipal Bonds and
Government Agency Securities:
Due Within One Year $ 400,625 $ 385,736
Due After One Year Through Five Years 7,977,589 7,365,090
Due After Five Years Through Ten Years 5,799,867 5,367,424
Subtotal 14,178,081 13,118,250
Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities 17,633,958 15,942,166
Total $ 31,812,039 $ 29,060,416

LOANS, NET

The Company makes loans to small businesses located in rural, economically
disadvantaged areas of Alabama, Arkansas, Louisiana, Mississippi, and Tennessee. Such
loans, the proceeds of which normally provide working capital and equipment financing to
undercapitalized businesses that may be unable to obtain credit from conventional financing
sources, have a higher than typical degree of risk.

Included in commercial loans is a concentration in New Market Tax Credit program loans
originated by community development entities which aggregated approximately
$173,975,984 and $139,680,000 at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. These
interest-only loans have seven-year repayment terms.

The Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) was signed into law on
March 27, 2020. The CARES Act provided economic relief to individuals and businesses
through the Payroll Protection Program (PPP), which allowed financial institutions to grant
forgivable, guaranteed Small Business Administration (SBA) loans. The PPP loans do not
require payments until six months after funding, mature at 24 or 60 months and bear interest
at 1.00%. During the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company had
approximately $4,843,556 and $13,593,047, respectively, of PPP loans outstanding
reported in commercial loans. Management determined that the impact of deferring
origination fees associated with the loans was not significant.
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NOTE S5 LOANS, NET (CONTINUED)

The composition of loans as of December 31 is as follows:

2023 2022
Commercial Loans $ 186,613,968 $ 159,492,212
Forgivable Mortgage Loans 3,192,190 3,611,034
Other Consumer Mortgage Loans 283,640 366,788
Subtotal 190,089,798 163,470,034
Allowance for Credit Losses 3,486,097 3,873,328
Total $ 186,603,701 $ 159,596,706

The Company has sold loan participations to various other companies, which are secured
by commercial property. These loan participations were sold without recourse and the
Company performs all loan servicing functions on these loans. Loan participations sold and
excluded from the commercial loan segment above, totaled approximately $3,478,746 and
$5,127,869 at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

A summary of the activity in the allowance is for credit losses on loans and loan losses for
the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, are as follows. The Company
adopted CECL as of January 1, 2023. The prior year amounts presented are calculated
under the prior accounting standard.

December 31, 2023

Balance -

Beginning Credit for Balance -
of Year Charge-Offs Recoweries Loan Losses End of Year
Commercial $ 3,871,725  § (330,807) $ 13,500 $ (69,739) $ 3,484,679
Other Consumer Mortgage Loans 1,603 (185) - - 1,418
Total $ 3,873,328 $ (330,992) $ 13,500 $ (69,739) $ 3,486,097
December 31, 2022
Balance -
Beginning Provision for Balance -
of Year Charge-Offs Recoveries Loan Losses End of Year
Commercial $ 3,838,874 § (466,167) $ 18,923 $ 480,095 $ 3,871,725
Other Consumer Mortgage Loans 2,110 (507) - - 1,603
Total $ 3,840,984 $ (466,674) $ 18,923 § 480,095 § 3,873,328

Because they do not represent a credit risk, management has determined that a reserve for
forgivable mortgage loans is unnecessary.

The Company has determined an allowance for credit losses on unfunded commitments
was not material to the consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2023.
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DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

LOANS, NET (CONTINUED)

The provision for credit losses is determined by the Credit Union as the amount to be added
to the allowance for credit losses for various types of financial instruments including loans,
investment securities, and unfunded commitments after net charge-offs have been deducted
to bring the allowance for credit losses to a level that, in management's judgment, is
necessary to absorb expected credit losses over the lives of the respective financial
instruments. The components of the provision for credit losses included in the statements of
income for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 related entirely to loans.

A loan is considered to be collateral dependent when, based upon management's
assessment, the borrower is experiencing financial difficulty and repayment is expected to
be provided substantially through the operation or sale of the collateral. For collateral
dependent loans, expected credit losses are based on the estimated fair value of the
collateral at the balance sheet date, with consideration for estimated selling costs if
satisfaction of the loan depends on the sale of the collateral. The following tables present
collateral dependent loans by portfolio segment and collateral type, including those loans
with and without a related allowance allocation.

The allowance for credit losses for loans considered to be collateral dependent as of
December 31, 2023 is as follows:

Other Consumer

Commercial Mortgage Loans Total
Allowance for Credit Losses:
Ending Balance: Collateral
Dependent $ 2,287,200 $ - $ 2,287,200
Loans:
Ending Balance: Collateral $ 6,075,851 $ - $ 6,075,851
Dependent

Collateral dependent commercial real estate loans, both owner occupied and non-owner
occupied are valued by independent external appraisals. These external appraisals are
prepared using the sales comparison approach and income approach valuation techniques.
Estimated fair values are reduced to account for sales commissions, broker fees, unpaid
property taxes and additional selling expenses to arrive at an estimated net realizable value.
Management may make subsequent unobservable adjustments to the collateral dependent
loan appraisals.

The allowance for loan losses for loans evaluated individually and collectively for impairment
by collateral class as of year ended December 31, 2022.

December 31, 2022

Loans Allowance
Individually Collectively Individually Collectively Net
Commercial $ 6,112,127  $ 153,380,085 $ 2,226,390 $ 1,645,335 $ 155,620,487
Other Consumer Mortgage Loans - 366,788 - 1,603 365,185
Total $ 6,112,127  § 153,746,873 § 2,226,390 § 1,646,938 § 155,985,672
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LOANS, NET (CONTINUED)

The following tables show the commercial loan portfolio allocated by management’s internal
risk ratings:

December 31, 2023

Special
Pass Mention Substandard Doubtful
Categories Category Category Category Total
Commercial Loans $ 179,465,045 $ 494,682 § 6589643 § 64,598 $ 186,613,968
December 31, 2022
Special
Pass Mention Substandard Doubtful
Categories Category Category Category Total
Commercial Loans $ 152,030,424 $ 1,349,648 $ 6,044,286 $ 67,854 § 159,492,212

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, all other consumer and forgivable mortgage loans were
performing.

The following tables show an aging analysis of the loan portfolio by time past due as of
December 31:

December 31, 2023

Past Due
Greater Than
90 Days and
Past Due Accruing
Current 30-89 Days Interest Nonaccrual Total
Commercial Loans $ 186,613,968 $ - $ - $ - $ 186,613,968
Forgivable Mortgage Loans 3,192,190 - - - 3,192,190
Other Consumer Mortgage Loans 283,640 - - - 283,640
Total $ 190,089,798 $ - % - $ - $ 190,089,798

December 31, 2022

Past Due
Greater Than
90 Days and
Past Due Accruing
Current 30-89 Days Interest Nonaccrual Total
Commercial Loans $ 157,509,718 § 109,330 §$ 1,873,164 $ - $ 159,492,212
Forgivable Mortgage Loans 3,611,034 - - - 3,611,034
Other Consumer Mortgage Loans 366,788 - - - 366,788
Total $ 161,487,540 §$ 109,330 $ 1,873,164 $ - $ 163,470,034

The following table present information related to impaired loans as of December 31:

December 31, 2022

Total Loans Total Loans
Average Unpaid with No with a
Principal Principal Specific Specific Specific
Balance Balance Allowance Allowance Allowance
Commercial Loans $ 7,145,367 $ 6,112,127  $ 113,424  § 5,998,703 $ 2,226,390

Modifications to borrowers experiencing financial difficulties may include interest rate
reductions, principal or interest forgiveness, forbearance, term extensions, and other actions
intended to minimize economic loss and to avoid foreclosure or repossession of collateral.
The Company did not enter into any modifications during the year ended December 31,
2023.
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LOANS, NET (CONTINUED)

During 2022, the Company had no TDRs that modified the principal and interest rate of the
impacted loans.

The Company does not have material commitments to lend additional funds to borrowers
with loans whose terms have been modified in troubled debt restructurings or whose loans
are in nonaccrual.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Under the terms of its contractual arrangements with HFCU, the Company has agreed to
reimburse HFCU for certain operating expenses and losses incurred on loans considered to
be higher risk than typically underwritten by regulated financial institutions such as HFCU.
Such obligations are limited so as to not provide HFCU with annual net income of more than
$240,000. HFCU and the Company share the same members of management and certain
HFCU members are also borrowers from the Company and its affiliates. The Company
incurred expenses of $7,338,845 and $494,300 relative to its obligation to reimburse certain
operating expenses of HFCU in 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Secondary capital of HFCU are loans that require principal repayments, unless HFCU (i) is
unable to fully service existing senior indebtedness, (ii) is unable to satisfy its operating
expenses, or (iii) does not have available cash flows for the withdrawals of funds for the
account. If such loans are not required to be repaid, they will be recognized as expense in
the period the losses are incurred.
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HOPE ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 6 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

The following table present information related to Secondary capital of HFCU as of
December 31, 2023:

Amount
Fixed Rate Note from ECD New Markets, LLC at an interest
rate of 1.00%, maturing on September 30, 2027 $ 550,000
Fixed Rate Note from ECD New Markets, LLC at an interest
rate of 1.00%, maturing on December 20, 2027 550,000
Fixed Rate Note from Hope Enterprise Corporation at an
interest rate of 1.00%, maturing on January 13, 2028 2,000,000
Fixed Rate Note from Hope Enterprise Corporation at an
interest rate of 1.00%, maturing on January 13, 2028 3,000,000
Fixed Rate Note from ECD New Markets, LLC at an interest
rate of 1.00%, maturing on June 22, 2028 825,000
Fixed Rate Note from Hope Enterprise Corporation at an
interest rate of 1.00%, maturing on April 29, 2028 1,000,000
Fixed Rate Note from Hope Enterprise Corporation at an
interest rate of 1.00%, maturing on December 31, 2028 5,000,000
Fixed Rate Note from Hope Enterprise Corporation at an
interest rate of 1.00%, maturing on December 31, 2028 1,500,000
Fixed Rate Note from Hope Enterprise Corporation at an
interest rate of 1.00%, maturing on December 31, 2028 14,560,775
Fixed Rate Note from Hope Enterprise Corporation at an
interest rate of 1.00%, maturing on December 31, 2028 3,000,000
Fixed Rate Note from Hope Enterprise Corporation at an
interest rate of 1.00%, maturing on December 31, 2028 2,000,000
Fixed Rate Note from ECD New Markets, LLC at an
interest rate of 1.00%, maturing on January 1, 2030 1,050,000
Fixed Rate Note from Hope Enterprise Corporation at an
interest rate of 3.00%, maturing on December 17, 2030 3,000,000
Total Secondary Capital of HFCU $ 38,035,775

Interest income received from HFCU relative to the secondary capital loans was $410,608
and $440,358 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. No
repayments are due on the above secondary capital loans until 2027 and thereafter.

The Company incurred $100,000 and $-0- in 2023 and 2022, respectively for grants to

HFCU which are included in development finance expense in the accompanying
consolidated statements of activities.
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HOPE ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 6 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 7

NOTE 8

Accounts payable to HFCU for grants and contractual services totaled $1,008,457 and $-0-
as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The Company had deposit accounts with
HFCU as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, totaling $35,769,677 and $20,112,099,
respectively.

The Company has a mortgage and note payable to HFCU with an outstanding principal
balance of $729,001 and $744,013, respectively at December 31, 2023 and 2022. See
terms of note at Note 8.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consist of the following:

2023 2022
Computer Equipment $ 5,373,135 $ 5,306,394
Office Equipment and Other 932,831 931,773
Buildings and Improvements 2,027,655 2,027,655
Construction in Progress 6,000 6,000
Subtotal 8,339,621 8,271,822
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (6,672,075) (6,261,115)
Total $ 1,667,546 $ 2,010,707

NOTES PAYABLE

The Company also entered into one loan facility with the bank to provide funding in amounts
up to $85,000,000. The outstanding balance under this loan facility at December 31, 2023
and 2022 are $4,872,747 and $12,040,731, respectively. The proceeds of this facility are to
be used to provide Paycheck Protection Program Loans (see Note 5) and are secured by
such outstanding loans. All remaining notes payable of the Company are unsecured except
for collateral consisting of a first real estate mortgage on the corporate office facilities
relative to the note payable to HFCU.

The Company recognized interest expense of $44,131 and $44,344 during 2023 and 2022,
respectively, related to its mortgage and note payable to HFCU.
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HOPE ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE8 NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

Notes payable consist of the following as of December 31:

2023 2022
1% Notes Payable:
Interest Due Quarterly and Maturing from 2020
through 2025 $ 6,999,417 $ 6,999,417
Interest Due Quarterly and Maturing from 2025
through 2027 1,000,000 1,000,000
Interest Due Annually and Maturing from 2023
through 2030 300,000 1,800,000
Interest Due Quarterly and at Maturity, March 2031 5,000,000 5,000,000
1.5% Note Payable, Interest Due Quarterly and
Maturing in 2026 560,775 560,775
1.5% Note Payable, Interest Due Quarterly and
Maturing in 2027 141,605 141,605
1.5% Note Payable, Interest Due Quarterly and
Maturing in 2028 110,000 -
2.4% Note Payable, Interest Due Quarterly and
Maturing in 2031 4,000,000 2,000,000
Notes Payable to Banks with Interest Due Quarterly:
Interest Payable at 3% and Maturing in 2025 173,708 307,906
Interest Payable at 3% and Maturing in 2030 5,000,000 -
Interest Payable at 3.25% and Maturing from 2025
through 2028 1,000,000 1,000,000
0.35% Note Payable Secured by Pledged PPP Loans,
Maturing as the Pledged Loans Mature 4,872,747 12,040,731
1.35% Note Payable with Interest Due Monthly, Maturing
in 2024 999,944 999,944
2% Note Payable:
Interest Due Quarterly and Maturing from 2031 to 2033 5,000,000 5,000,000
Interest Due Semi-Annually and Maturing in 2026 3,000,000 3,000,000
Interest Due Quarterly and Maturing in 2027 1,500,000 1,500,000
3% Notes Payable:
Interest Due Quarterly and Maturing in 2026 4,000,000 4,000,000
Interest Due Quarterly and Maturing in 2028 3,000,000 3,000,000
Interest Due Quarterly and Maturing in 2030 10,000,000 10,000,000
4.75% Mortgage Payable to HFCU with Monthly
Installments of $5,099, Including Interest at Prime
Plus 1.5%, Payable Until Final Balloon in
February 2031 729,001 744,013
Note Payable to Nonprofit Foundation Bearing Interest
at 2% with Interest Due Quarterly, Maturing in 2026 250,000 250,000
Note Payable to Nonprofit Foundation Bearing Interest
at 2% with Interest Due Quarterly and Maturing
from 2026 through 2028 752,000 752,000
Interest Free Notes Payable:
Nonprofit Foundation Maturing in 2024 400,000 400,000
Nonprofit Foundation Maturing in 2025 250,000 250,000
Other Notes Payable, with Interest at 1% to 2.5% 75,000 110,000
2% Line of Credit with Interest Due Monthly, Maturing
in 2029 5,000,000 5,000,000
Total Notes Payable $ 64,114,197 $ 65,856,391
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HOPE ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE8 NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

All notes payable without collateral described above represent unsecured notes.

Notes payable maturities at December 31, 2023, are as follows:

Years Ending December 31,
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
Thereafter

Amount

$ 2,583,529
1,114,617
13,500,352
2,667,062
636,949
43,611,688

Total

$ 64,114,197

NOTE9 NET ASSETS

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of the following as of December 31:

Net Assets Subject to Expenditures for Specified Purpose:
Development Finance Activities
Housing Initiative Activities
Other Program Activities

Subtotal
Net Assets Subject to Passage of Time:
For Periods after December 31
Net Assets to be Maintained in Perpetuity:
Revolving Loan Funds

Total Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

2023 2022
$ 17,473,001 $ 16,024,218
242,185 369,500
262,533 387,833
17,977,719 16,781,551
40,000 40,000
614,578 692,512
$ 18,632,297 $ 17,514,063

Noncontrolling Interests

ECDI has issued 220 Class A units at $25,000 per unit. The owners of the Class A units
may elect three of the seven members of the management committee of ECDI. The
Company, the sole Class B unit holder, appoints the other four members. The Company is
the sole managing member of ECDA and elects three of the five board of directors of
ECDNM. ECDA is the primary investing member of ECDNM. The Company is the sole
managing member of twenty additional New Market Tax Credit entities and elects two of the
three board of directors of each company. Although the Company controls the board of
directors of these entities, the Company has only a minor investment in these entities and
thus receives minimal allocations of earnings or losses. Further, the Company received
minimal distributions from these entities during 2023 and 2022. Dividends in arrears relative
to the ECDI Class A units totaled $114,775 at December 31, 2023 and 2022,.
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NOTE 9

HOPE ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NET ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Noncontrolling Interests (Continued)

The changes in noncontrolling interest are as follows:

Balance - Balance -
January 1, Equity Dividends Net Earnings December 31,
2023 Investment Paid (Loss) 2023
ECD Investments Consolidated $ (405,483) $ - 8 - 8 7 $ (405,490)
ECD Associates Consolidated 1,159,082 - (25,862) (16,898) 1,116,322
Hope New Markets 5 3,530,914 - (98,172) (155,254) 3,277,488
Hope New Markets 6 10,846,664 - (18,482) 45,812 10,873,994
Hope New Markets 7 7,721,228 - (77,592) 63,626 7,707,262
Hope New Markets 8 7,699,607 - (217,783) 242,613 7,724,437
Hope New Markets 9 8,686,377 - (310,237) 294,525 8,670,665
Hope New Markets 10 7,779,326 - (212,399) 198,432 7,765,359
Hope New Markets 11 8,495,764 - (6,938) 388,067 8,876,893
Hope New Markets 12 9,659,262 - (81,333) 63,901 9,641,830
Hope New Markets 13 7,690,838 - (96,390) 121,220 7,715,668
Hope New Markets 14 6,694,621 - (59,791) 115,463 6,750,293
Hope New Markets 15 13,387,896 - (100,790) 212,135 13,499,241
Hope New Markets 16 6,688,182 - (50,652) 106,324 6,743,854
Hope New Markets 17 9,661,974 - (96,240) 78,782 9,644,516
Hope New Markets 18 6,755,915 - (44,569) 32,348 6,743,694
Hope New Markets 19 13,512,149 - (101,246) 76,804 13,487,707
Hope New Markets 20 7,729,245 - (64,706) 50,740 7,715,279
Hope New Markets 21 6,000,000 - (66,469) (153,085) 5,780,446
Hope New Markets 23 - 7,500,000 (33,435) (241,008) 7,225,557
Hope New Markets 24 - 14,450,000 (100,562) (428,197) 13,921,241
Hope New Markets 25 - 7,000,000 (5,098) (251,049) 6,743,853
Total $ 143,293,561 $ 28,950,000 $ (1,868,746) $ 845,294 § 171,220,109
Balance - Balance -
January 1, Equity Dividends Net Earnings December 31,
2022 Investment Paid (Loss) 2022
ECD Investments Consolidated $ (400,112) $ - $ - % (5,371) $ (405,483)
ECD Associates Consolidated 1,178,967 - (27,928) 8,043 1,159,082
Hope New Markets 5 3,654,085 - (98,173) (24,998) 3,530,914
Hope New Markets 6 10,794,083 - - 52,581 10,846,664
Hope New Markets 7 7,721,228 - (77,592) 77,592 7,721,228
Hope New Markets 8 7,699,606 - (217,783) 217,784 7,699,607
Hope New Markets 9 8,686,378 - (310,237) 310,236 8,686,377
Hope New Markets 10 7,779,327 - (212,399) 212,398 7,779,326
Hope New Markets 11 8,448,859 - (3,468) 50,373 8,495,764
Hope New Markets 12 9,659,238 - (81,333) 81,357 9,659,262
Hope New Markets 13 7,690,838 - (96,390) 96,390 7,690,838
Hope New Markets 14 6,694,622 - (59,791) 59,790 6,694,621
Hope New Markets 15 13,387,896 - (100,790) 100,790 13,387,896
Hope New Markets 16 6,688,181 - (50,652) 50,653 6,688,182
Hope New Markets 17 9,661,974 - (96,240) 96,240 9,661,974
Hope New Markets 18 - 7,000,000 (29,341) (214,744) 6,755,915
Hope New Markets 19 - 14,000,000 (80,716) (407,135) 13,512,149
Hope New Markets 20 - 8,000,000 (45,115) (225,640) 7,729,245
Hope New Markets 21 - 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000
Total $ 109,345,170 $ 35,000,000 $ (1,587,948) $ 536,339 § 143,293,561
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NOTE 10

NOTE 11

NOTE 12

HOPE ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

Financial assets available for general expenditures, that is, without donor or other
restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the balance sheet date, are comprised of the
following:

2023 2022
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 32,775,012 $ 36,596,423
Grants Receivables 1,403,043 677,500
Investment Securities 29,060,416 28,147,278
Loans Receivable 2,324,907 724,229
Loan Guarantees Receivable from SBA 1,398,446 6,488,902
Interest Receivable 166,985 468,840
Financial Assets, at Year End 67,128,809 73,103,172
Less Those Not Available for General Expenditures
within One Year, Due to:
Restricted by Donors (18,632,297) (17,514,063)
Lines of Credit Secured by Loan Guarantees Receivable
from SBA (1,398,446) (6,488,902)
Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs
for General Expenditure within One Year $ 47,098,066 $ 49,100,207

The Company’s liquidity management policy has structured its financial assets to be
available for its general expenditures and other obligations that come due. The Company
invests cash in excess of daily requirements in short-term investments. In the event of an
unanticipated liquidity need, the Company also could draw upon available loan facilities as
discussed in Note 8.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Company sponsors a defined contribution 401(k) plan (the Plan) for all employees. The
Company contributes 100% of the first 4% contributed by each employee. Expenses of the
Plan were $118,006 in 2023 and $94,937 in 2022.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Off-Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition Activities

The Company is a party to conditional commitments to lend funds in the normal course of
business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These commitments represent
financial instruments to extend credit that involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and
interest rate risk in excess of amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s exposure to credit loss is represented by the contractual notional amount of
these instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments as it
does for those loans recorded in the consolidated financial statements.
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HOPE ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 12 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Off-Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition Activities (Continued)

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the
other party for loan commitments (including unused lines of credit) was approximately
$195,000 and $4,102,000 at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no
violation of any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed
expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Because
many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total
commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Company
evaluates each customer’'s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of
collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of credit is based
on management’s credit evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral held varies but may
include consumer assets, residential real estate, commercial real estate, and member
share balances.

Unfunded commitments under revolving credit lines are commitments for possible future
extensions of credit to existing members. These lines-of-credit are uncollateralized and
usually do not contain a specified maturity date and may not be drawn upon to the total
extent to which the Credit Union is committed.

Credit Enhancement Loans

As of December 31, 2023, HFCU has loans outstanding that are partially collateralized by
credit enhancement guarantees from the Company through a charter school credit
enhancement program. Total credit enhancement guarantees from the Company for these
loans aggregated approximately $11,195,223 and $11,276,000 as of December 31, 2023
and 2022, respectively.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company has an executive employment agreement with its principal executive which
entitles the principal executive to receive certain benefits based upon years of service and
attainment of certain incentives. The Company accrued a liability for past services relative to
this deferred compensation arrangement, which was $389,799 and $657,994 as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Concentrations

Contributions totaling $7,125,000 and $5,633,457 were received from three donors and two
donors in years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, representing 48% and
38% of total revenue, respectively. Should these contribution levels decrease, the Company
may be adversely affected.

(32)



(g€)

6€9°211'62 $ Lye'08L’L § 8129/ $ €29'c0/'9 $ 862'/€T'8L $ 2G6'8S6'S $  82.'80L $ /51109 $ 19¥'896'01 $ |ejoL

026'G6 026'G6 - 026'S6 - - - - - asuadxy asean
Ve LLY 8/8'0LY - 8/8'0LY feie) 4 Sov - - - uonezjIowy pue uonerpsidag
(6€2'69) - - - (6€2'69) - - ¥8L'LL (€z6'98) $95S07}IpaI) 40} Uoisinoid
20€'6.L2' L €V9'LET') - €V9'LET L 659°'LY - - - 659'LY }saisiu|
0€G'LLY 66G5'9L1 ¥81'0€ Sly'ovl L €662 2€.'6G1 02t'96 80.'8 1L0'VE 1enel |
L¥9'CS L 69G'86 128 8v.'L6 2L0'vS 996'GY 120°L S 0€0°L salN pue suoyds|a .

00Z'eS 008'ce - 008'ce 00%'02 - - - 00%'02 uoneoo|ay
- - - - - - - - - pue jJuawyinioay yes
1€L°18€ ¥¥6'86 90S 8EY'86 18/1'28¢ kAN % L€9'6C GG8'ES €20'65 1 $998- 8018
00L'€€l vee'zel - vee'ezl 99€'L L 8G9°'C - - 80.'8 S0UBUSJUIEN puE sileday
186°'L2 €Szl - €521 ¥€8'6 0se'z - - ¥8G°'L Bunped eshojdw3 pue jusy
€¥9'8G¢ 8l.'L1e - 8ll'Lle G98'0Y 6G°'1€ - - 1126 $9894 |euolsssjold
oLe'8es’L 000002 - 000002 0L2'829'L 006°LC - - 01€909°} sjueto ybnouy ssed
9//'6€€ 71186 6.0, Ge0'L6 299'Lve Lev'62C Ll 0S8 €09°¢ sa|ddng @0y0
zor'oee 9/€'v61 €Sy €22'061 9z0'9¢l 9€0°'00} 2.8, €186 S0e'8l snoaue|8dsIN
G0S'vve S0G'vve - S0S'vve - - - - - aoueinsu|
Sve'8eY’, - - - Sve'8eY’, - - - Sv8'8eY’, voddng |euonesado NO4H

6EV' VL L - - - 6EY' VL. - - €50'G61 98¢e'6lC 198Q ueoT
abebuop jo ssauanibioq

009°228 LG1'6EE €€6'C 815'9¢ee 671881 6.2'S01 8.¢€'C b 18108 sainxi4
pue ‘ainjuing ‘quawdinbg
860°LE| 20.'06 €€9'1L 690'68 96£'9¥Y 18€'9 Lz9'ce 000°L ¥6€'9 sdiysioquiay pue ‘sea4 ‘sang
LPS'E6L'Y €69 0L 0¥ 8€.'259 660001y 61692’ 006°.L - 0z0'€ece S9ONIBS [ENJOBJUOD

€8.'20¢€ 0zl'8s oLe'le 018'9¢ €99'vve L.0'vle zle'9e 0 Vi€V Bujures)
aakojdw3 pue saoualajuon
€ev'6e 8G/'c€e - 8G.'¢€T GL9'GL - - - GL9'GL 984 ueg

6v.'0€2's $ SST'vel'c $  G6€'.L9¢ $ 098'99¢'c $ vev'9e¥'c $ 9zr'eer'lL $  Gp89ey $ 8.9l $ S¥T'LSS $ Slysueg pue
‘soxe] @akojdw] ‘saueles

sasuadxg |ejo1qng uonEdIUNWWOYD  UOHEJSIUIWPY |ejoiqns sweiboid Koeoonpy aAlenu| aoueul
1ejo1 Bunioddng pue pue |eiausn) sweibold 18410 pue Aoljod BuisnoH uswdojereg
Buisieipung
saonlag Bupioddng sannpoy welboid

"s991AI9s Buioddns Joy pasinaul Joye pue awli) 0} pasedwod saljiAloe welboud 1o} paiindul Joye pue awl) Jo siseq ay} uo
pajeoo|e ale yolym ‘asuadxs saiijin pue suoyds|a) ‘seliddns 22140 apnjoul pajedo|e ale ey} sasuadxe ay| ‘pajjsuaq SedIAI9S
Bunioddns pue sweliboid sy Buowe psiedo|e ale 10 uonedyiuapl oynads uo paseq sadlnles bBuioddns Jo saniaioe wesboud
0} Apoadip pabieyd Jaylia ale S)S07) "SMOJ|0) UOIBOYISSEJD [BJNjeU pue [euonjouny Agq pazuewwns sasuadxa £z0g jo0 Alewwns vy

S3ASN3dX3 40 NOILVIIHISSVT1D TVNOILONNG €1 310N

2202 ANV €202 ‘L€ ¥y39W3o3a
SINIW3LVLS TVIONVNI4 d31VaAITOSNOD Ol S310N
NOILVYOdY0D ISRIdY31LNT 3dOH



(¥€)

6G€°00L'GL $ S06'989'0 $ €le98y  $§ g6L'002'9 $  veg'elv'e ¢ ellelee § L1SUv.  $  S0l'ceS  $ e6lsozge § ejoL

25098 25098 - 250'98 - - - - - asuadx3 asea
€69°0LY €69°0LY - €690l - - - - - uonezipowy pue uoneloaidag
¥60°'08Y - - - ¥60°'08Y - - (£209) 109081 $§88S5071Ipal) Jo} uoisiroid
0Z¥'90L°1L 219'c96 - 219'€96 808'CYl - - - 808'ZY| }saisu|
M9'v6C 9/l'evl 265 L1 ¥8G°L€1 (VAdi4" ¥8'G. €.2'se 182 990'v¥ |oAel
968°29¢ 260202 8GG'0¢€ vev'LLL #08'091 92.'59 oLo'ov 169V 1L€'0S saliN pue suoyds|a L

000°'ce - - - 000°'ce - - - 000°'ce uoneoo|ay
pue JusWINIoaY Jels
€11'88¢ €6l12e 20g's 168'GLC 085291 19282 ZLLTL G6G°LS 90069 $884 908
L61'€6 L01'8. 816 €81°2. 06€Gl 96G'Y Sl6 1S¢ 229'6 SoUBUSJUIEA pUE slleday
9evy 18 4 SP 6.€ 801 €l - 86¢ Bupuied eafojdwz puejuey
1eg'Lve 9€6'82¢ 0SL'v 98.'€ze G86'ClL 1 vvl'ey - - 12’0 $994 |euolsssjoid
86€'0LL 000'S. - 000'G. 86€'G69 669'v€C - - 669091 sjuet ybnouy] ssed
8G9'c8Y 6G1°LL ¥2e'0l G€8'99 661901 L€1°08¢€ 2511 0zs 0L2'vL sal|ddng @oy0
258°06¢ 019°LLL €6G'| L10'921 tAZA A" €.0'G Gll'z 191 128'G91 snosaue||8osIN
96¥'2€C 96¥'z€C - 96v'ceC - - - - - aoueINsy|
00€'v6Y - - - 00€'v6¥% - - - 00€'v6¥ Hoddng euojesado NO4H

1€1°029 - - - 1€1°029 - - 1G2'00¥ 98¢e6le 1geQ ueoT
abebuop jo ssauanibioq

9172'90L LyS LEY ocl'sy L11'€8¢€ 66162 LEE'V6 0¥.'9S 200'8 0cl9ll sainxi4
pue ‘ainjuing ‘yuawdinbg
0/8'G91 G29'9L 666'€ 929'c. SvZ'68 2Ly 68¢'ve 667 €€, sdiysiequis\ pue ‘sea4 ‘sang
082096 S6E'07S ovs'vl G68'GeS G88'6l¥'C 0v5'ces’L 1816 16 197°1v8 $8JI8S |ENOBRNUOD

1€€'66 80€'6¢2 8¥0'C 09¢'/2 €200, 926°L1 €08V Ll €V0'Y Buiures)
@akojdw3 pue sadualajuo)
817¢'6€ zee'ee - zez'ee 9lLL'9lL - - - 9lLL'9lL $984 ueq

196'8.5Y ¢ 199'€89'C $  LvG'cse $  viL'leg'e § 00g'G68'L $  Z6EV6L $  00€'99Fy §  €2€09 $ G682viS $ sjjsueg pue
‘saxe] @akojdw3 ‘salejes

sasuadxy |ejogng uopEdIUNWWOYD  UOKELSIUIWPY |lejoiqns sweiboid Koeaonpy anpenu| aoueul
1elol Bupioddng pue pue |ejausg) sweiboid J8Y10 pue Aa1j0d BuisnoH uswdojanaq
Buisiespung
saomniag buioddng salAoY welbold

"SMOJ|0} UONBOIISSE|D |elnjeu pue |euoijoun) Aq pezuewwns sasuadxs zz0z 10 Alewwns v

(@3NNILNOD) SASNIdX3 40 NOILLYOIJISSV1D TVNOILONNA €1 ILON

2202 ANV €202 ‘L€ ¥39W3o3a
SIN3IW3LVLS TVIONVNI4 d31VAITOSNOD Ol S310N
NOILVYOdYO0D FASRIdY3LNT 3dOH



(ge)

ol8ivr'eez §  (8vL‘oee)  §  LG'8SSvIL $ 991°¢85'2ZL $  GEE'069'C $ - $

958°202'22e (£66'692°1) /¥8°LE6'ELL ¥£.1'696°9Y S62'067'C (£20'GLY)

162°2€9'81 - - 162°2£9'81 - -

0S¥'05€°2e (£66'69.°1) 8¥2'90€°C 1e¥'eee'se S6Z°067°C (2£5°6)

601022 LLL - 665°G29‘LLL - - (06¥‘s0t)

¥56'8£2'92 (551°029) 019'929 Z8v'2119'G. 0v0°002 120'GlLy

¥8S‘LLL - - ¥85°LLL - -

16LYLL Y9 - - 16L7LLY9 - -

66L Ly L - 000°0. 900°122°2 €61'00) -

- (118'6L9) BLLELL - S09°L6 120°GLY

1G%'800°L - - 1618001 - -

116'205°¢ $  (bpe) $ Lev Sy $ 8g8l'zso's ¢ Zv9'L - $

oL8Lvr'eez ¢ (8vL'oee?) $  LGY'8SSVIL  $ 99l'e8s'cel ¢ GEE'069'C $ - $

LGl - - LS¥ il - -

¥69°'2¥S - 000°0% 69297 000°0% -

9¥G'299°) - - 9152991 - -

G//'G£0'8E - 000'6/6°C G//'090°GE - -

- (£66'692°1) - £66'69.°1 - -

91+'090'62 - - 9109062 - -

(260°981°€) - (¥58°'982°€) (evL'v6l) (00L'g) -

86.'680'061} - 00S°18S‘€LL €L10z8'cl G81'889°C -

- (851°019) - 651019 - -

686991 - 686991 - - -

8G60'GL0°C (000°01) 16066 olz'sze’l 162001 -

TLL0EY L - - TLL0EY' L - -

ZL0'6LL°CE $ - $ 69,786 $ v¥8l'6z6'0e ¢ 657998 $ - $

palepljosuo) suoljeuiwl|g mw_cmn_rcoo Co_ym‘_on‘_oo “ou| o1

JpaID xe| asudiayug ‘uleby sawoH ‘SJUBWISANU|
SENTEIINEIN] adoH an3

(L¥0d3¥ .s¥0LIaNV LNIANI4IANI 33S)

€202 ‘L€ ¥39IN303a

NOILISOd TVIONVNI4 40 LNJW3LVLS ONILVAITOSNOD
NOILVYOdYOD FASRIdU31LNT 3dOH

S}ossy JoN pue so

qeln [ejol

(1ouaQ) s1esSY 1oN [eloL
SUOIjOL}SaY Jouod YHAA
SuoIoL)SaY Jouod INOYNAA
s}salau| Bul|j0JjUooUON
S13SSV 13N

saljljiqern [ejol

Aynger esean

a|qefed sa10N

anuanay pauseq

sejellyy 0} eng

uolun ypai) [esspa4 adoH 0} s|qeled

sasuadx3 paniooy pue s|qeAed SjUNOOdY
s3alLniavii

S13SSV 13N ANV s3lLiavii

SESVAEI]

jossy 8sn-o-1ybry
sjessy Jaylo
19N ‘uswdinb3 pue Apadoid
NO4H Jo |[enden Alepuodss Ul Juswisanu|
Aeipisgng ul Juswisanu|
$8IJIN08S JUBWISaAU|
$S9SS07 JIpal)) 10} 9OUBMO||Y
8|qeAIS0DY SueoT
sejeljyy wol enQg
8|qeAI8O8Y BnuUaASY JOBIU0D
SB|qeAIDD8Y JaYl0 pue jueis
yse) pajousay
sjusjeainb3 yse) pue ysen
S13SSsV



(9¢)

9gg'zoz'zez ¢ (€66'692°L) ¢ /¥8'Lee'elL $  ¥EL'S96'9r $  Gez'o6v'e  $ (L20'SLY) $
60L°022°LLL - 665'G29°LL) - - (06%'50%)
1¥1'286'0S (£66'69.°1) 812'90¢°C ¥£1°G96°9 G62'06Y°C (2e5°6)

- Lv1'6l (Z¥2'61) - - -

- (568°2) G68°Z - - -

6G1°215'9S (860°292°1) ev1°212°C 1¥9°eee'2S €16'2hL'e (905°6)
(ZLY'v65°9) (2v2°61) 156G (e16°29¢°9) (829'252) (1e)
(¥62'518) - (022'sv8) - - (¥2)
(8LL'6¥L'Y) (Lv2'61) 122°168 (€16°29¢°G) (829'252) (2)

6£9°L1¥'ST (yz9'szs')) 6vLLLL L 2£6'6596 7 GLL'GlY L

8L29.¥ - - 8LL'9.Y - -

£29°€02°9 - - £29°€0.2°9 - -

862°/£2'8) (vzo'ges‘l) 6L LLLY 16S'6LL°LL GLL'GlY A

756'856°G - - 756'856°G - -

82.°80. - - 82.°80. - -

1G1°109 - - 1G1°109 - -

1978960} (vzo'ses’l) 6YLLLLL $G2°01G°0) GLL'GlY A

125'899°02 (L2g'8v2'1) 9/£°209°C 610°265'6) 16v'222 -

(g80°c9l) (g80°c9l) - -

LyE'ese’L (vzo'ses’l) S0.°292 GB6S°TTL'T G99°LT -

9/8'6. - - (918'¢) 269°c8 -

001‘¥£0°C (zv2'61) - 1¥8°€50°C - -

¥20°G99°C - 129'%€€°T 020°z2E £ee's -

GLz'e9LvL  $ - $ - $ 80¥'099'%L $  208'80L $ - $

pajeplijosuoc) mm_cmaEOO Co_umLOQLOO “ou| .Emm( oM
Hpal) xe| mw_‘_a‘_wucm_ BWwIoH hwucm_._.;mec_
S}OMEN MON adoH an3

(L¥0d3¥ .s¥0LIaNV LNIANILIANI 33S)

€202 ‘L€ ¥39N303A AIAANT AVIA
S3AILIAILOV 40 LNJIW3LVLS ONILVAITOSNOD
NOILVYOd¥OD FASRIdAU31LNT 3dOH

¥V3A 40 aN3 - (1191430) S13SSV 13N
s)salaju| Buljj0JjUODUON JO S}essY 19N

¥VIA 40 AN - SLSIYALNI
ONITTOULNOD OL 37aVLINGRILLY S13SSV 13N

s}saselu| Buljjouo) 0} pled spuspinid
uonnquuoy [eyded
Jea A Jo Buiuuibag
Buluuibag - }saieju| Bujjjosuo) 0} 8|geINqUIY SIBSSY 19N

L1S3IHILNI ONITTOHULNOD
0l 378v.LiNgRiLLVY S13SSV 1IN NI 3ONVHO

$S07 18N ,S8uelpisqng Ul sjsalaiu] BuljjouoouoN

1S3HALNI
ONITTOYLNOONON 3¥0439 S13SSV 1IN NI 3ONVHO

sasuadx3 [ejol

uoreodunwwo) pue Buisieipun

asuadx3 uoljel}SIuIWLPY puUe [BIBUSD)
sasuadx3 weibold [elol

swelboid Jayi0

Aoeoonpy pue Adljod

anneniu) BuisnoH

aoueul4 Juswdojanaq

:sosuadxg weiboid
S3ASN3AdX3

sules) pue sanuanay [Bjo]
anuanay SNOBUE||9ISIN
anuaney S9OIISS JOBIIU0D
(s@s507) suies Jayi0
19N ‘OWOodU| JUsW}SaAU|
SjusWISaNU| JaY}O puUE Sueo
S99 paje|oy pue ‘spuspniq ‘}saley|
SUOIINQUIUCD pUE SJUBID
SNIVO ANV S3NN3IAIY



(£8)

L86°129'8 ¢ L99'veLL ¢ ce0'80LL ¢ wee/880L $ ¥ZS'¥B9'E ¢ osv'sor'e $ sj1essy JeN pue sanljiqer] [ejoL
165°129°8 902'52.°L 2£0'80. L 990°6/8°04 118'212'S ZE5'S0Y'e sjessy JeN [ejol
2.8 69/ 0.2 TL0') 62¢ 012'682°C suoiou}saY Jouod INOUNAA
G99°029°8 iAW) 292'20L L ¥66°€28°0L 88y°1/2°C zZe9LLL sjsese)u| Bul|j013u0oUON
S13SSV 13N
- LS7'69 - 892'zl 201'90% (z8) seliqer [ejoL
- - - - - - Bnuanay palisie
- G00°Sl - G/8'9 ¥8Z°LL - ssjel|yy 0} ang
- $ vy v $ - $ €6€°S $ €zr'see $ (29 $ sosuadx3g peniody pue s|qeled sunoody
s3ALmavIl

S13SSV 13N ANV s3lLnavii

1€5°119'8 $ 1G9'v6.°L $ 2€0'80.°L $ ¥€€°/88°0L  $ ¥25v89°c $ 0Sv'sov'e $ sjessy [ejoL
- - - - - - sjessy Jaylo
- - - - - 000°6.6°C NO4H Jo [eyded Arepuodss ul Juswisaay|
(¥9¢'69) (89/29) (89/°29) (955°24) (920'9%1°2) - $88807 }Ipal) 10} 8oUEBMO||Y
000°0€.'8 000°09.°2 000°09.°2 000°029°0} 000°028‘G - S|qeAISO9Y sueoT
- G29'9/ - 12l'6 - - 3|qeAIg08Y BnusAsy 1oeIIu0)
14 000°0L - - 000°0L - S9|qeAIBO9Y JOYIO pue Juelo
9.8 $ 008 $ 008 $ €91°082 $ 009 $ 0S¥'0ey $ sjuajeninb3 yseo pue ysed
S13SSV
011 6 s1Ivie 0711 8 s1gxie 011 L siexie 011 9 s1Iexiep O71 6 s1en psjepljosuo)
maN adoH MapN adoH M3N adoH maN adoH mapN adoH D77 ‘sejeloossy
ao3

(L¥0d3y .sy0llanv LNIAN3Id3ANI 33S)
€202 ‘L€ ¥39IN303a
NOILISOd TVIONVNI4 40 INJNILVLS ONINISINOD
SIINVAINOD LIa3¥D XV.L SLIAMYVIN M3N 40 STIvi3a
NOILVHOdHOD ISI¥dYILNT 3dOH



(8¢)

16G°00S'€L  $ 6960529 $  e6ev9lL’. ¢ 608°Cv9'6 $ Ll¥'888'8 $ lgL'9L'L  $
16G'00S‘C) 6960629 6EY'OLL L ¥61°279°'6 811°1/8'8 1€1°99/°1

0se’L 9/9 VL2 796 688 8./

LZ'667°Cl €62°06.°9 899°GLL L 0£8°1¥9'6 £68°9/8'8 65£'G9.L'L

- - - Gl 669°0L 000°0L

- - - Gl 000°0L -

- $ - $ - $ - $ 669 $ 000°0L $
16G°'00S'€L  $ 6960529 $  e6ev9lL. $ 608°CTv9'6 $  L/¥'988's $ leL'9L'L $
(vve'ze) (z21'9%) (892°29) (096'59) (v9¢'69) (89229)
000°08S°‘€l 0000629 000092 000°00.°6 000°0€.°8 000092

- Lp'9 10%'8 089°2 - GOL‘8S

GES'LL - - - 000°0L 000°0L

001 $ o0l $ 008 $  680°L $ L8202 $ 008 $

071161 sIeN
MaN adoH

OT1 vl s1Ioxien
MmapN adoH

011 €l SIdeN
M3N adoH

S3INVJINOD 11d3¥I XV1 S1IMYVIN M3AN 40 STIvi3d

071 ¢l sen
maN adoH

071 L1 sioen
maN adoH

071101 s1ee
MaN adoH

(L¥Od3¥ .S¥0L1IaNV LNIANIJIANI 33S)

€202 ‘L€ ¥39IN303a
(Q3INNILNOD) NOILISOd TVIONVNI4 40 LNJWILVLS ONINIGINOD

NOILVYOd¥OD FASRIdAd31LNT 3dOH

S]9SSY 19N pue safijigerT [ejoL

S]9SSY 1N |elol

SUOI}OL}SY Jouoq INOYUAA

s}saIa)u| Bulf|0U0dUON
S13SSV 13N

salliqer [ejol

snuanay pauaeq
sejeljyy o} anQ

sosuadx3 peniody pue s|geAed Sjunoooy

s3lnavii

S13SSV L3N ANV s3aiLavii

sjessy [ejol

sjessy JaYi0

NO4H 1o [enden Alepuooss Ui Jusu}saau]

S9SS0T HP8ID IO} SOUEMO||Y

8|qeAis0sy sueo

8|qeAIg0sY BnNusAsY J0BIIU0D

S13Sssv

$9|genlsoay J8yj0 pue juelo
sjusjeAinb3 yseo pue ysed



(6€)

¥20'16L's $  0S0'9eL'.  $  9s0'eBYEL  $  69E¥SL9 I8¥'S¥9'6 $  8ZSrL'9 $
¥20°18.'G 0S0°9LL°L 950°687'SL 69E‘P¥.L'9 L8Y'Sv9'6 825'vv.'9

8§ 112 67l G/9 G596 19

9vv‘08.'S 6.2°SLL°L 102°18¥'€1 ¥69°€Y.L‘9 915P¥9'6 ¥S8‘ev.L‘9
0000} 000'02 000°0L 0000} - -

000°0L 000°0L 00004 0000} - -

- 000°0} - - - -

- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $
¥20'162's $  080'9eL°. $  9so'6eFEL  $  69E¥GL9  $ lgv'sb9’'e  $  82SPrL9 $
000°0} - - - - -

(925'6€) (89229) (rveze) (z21'9%) (096'59) (z2199)
000°028'S 000°09.°L 000°08S ‘€L 000°06.‘9 000°00.‘6 000°06.‘9

- 6508} - - Lol 102

009 $ 6601 $  oov'hL $ LGS0l $ 000} $ ¢y $

o711 L s1e
maN adoH

0711 0C s1oxeiN
MaN adoH

07161 spen
MmaN adoH

S3INVJINOD 11d3dI XV1 SLIMYVIN M3AN 40 STIvi3d

0711 81 s1dxen
maN adoH

o711 L)L s1xe
MmaN adoH

07191 se
MmaN adoH

(L¥Od3¥ .S¥0L1IanV LNIANIJIANI 33S)

€202 ‘L€ ¥39IN303a
(Q3INNILNOD) NOILISOd TVIONVNI4 40 LNJWILVLS ONINIGINOD

NOILVYOdYOD FASRIdAd31LNT 3dOH

s}ossy JoN [B10L

SUOI}OU}ISaY Jouoq INOYUAA
s)sese)u| Bulf|o)uoouUoN

S13SSV 13N

sajljiqer [ejol
snuanay pauajeq
sejeljyy 0} enq

sasuadx3 paniody pue ajgeAed Sjunodoy

s3lavii

S13SSV 13N ANV s3iLiavii

S}essy [BjoL

ISESVEETiTe)

ND4H 1o [eude) Alepuodss ul Juswlsaau]

S9SS07 JPaI)) J0} BOUBMO||Y

8|qeAis0sy sueo

9]|qeAIg08Y SNuBASY J0BIIU0D

S13SSsV

SB|qeAI9O9Y JBUIO pUE juels
sjusjeainb3 yse) pue ysed



IG¥'88G'vLL  $ 8le'elL'9 $ e€e9'cesel  $ evogse. $

18°1£6'CL) 82G'7¥.'9 ££9'226'cl 082'922°L

82 90€°C G/9 z6E°L €zl

665°G29°LL) £68°cv.'9 LZ'1z6'cl 165'622°L

019929 06.'82 000°0} 291'82

000°0 000°0} 000°0} 000°0}

6LL'ELL - - -

LEv'Shy $  o06L'8L $ - ¢  zal'sl $

IS¥'88S'vLL $ 8le'ell'9 $ €e9'zes'el  $ 2ho'sse’. §

000°0% 00004 0000} 000°0}

000°6/6'Z - - -

(¥58'982°¢) (z21'9p) (z1e's6) (02¥'6Y)

005°185°€/1 0000629 005‘9L0‘VL 000°6/2°L

G86'091 - - -

150'66 068l - -

69/°286 $ 00 $ Skl $ zIs'6l $
pauIqwo) OT1GZ SIMeN  OT1¥Z SIdeiN D71 €2 siexe

S3INVdINOD 11a3dD XV1 S1IMUVIN MaAN 40 STIviad

M3N adoH

M3N ddoH

MaN adoH

(L¥0d3y .sy0llanVv LNIANId3IANI 33S)

€202 ‘1€ ¥39W303a
(Q3INNILNOD) NOILISOd TVIONVNI4 40 LNJWILVLS ONINIGINOD

NOILVYOdY0) ISRIdi31LNT 3dOH

S]9sSY 19N Pue saljiger [ejoL

S]9SSY 1N |elo|

SUOI}OL}SY Jouoq INOYUAA

s)salalu| Bulfjo)u0dUoN

S13SSV 13N

sa|iqer] [eloL
anuanay pauseqg
sejelyy 0} eng

sosuadx3 peniody pue sjgeAed Sjunoooy

s3alLniavii

S13SSV 13N ANV s3aiLavii

sjessy [e10l

sjessy JaYyi0

NO4H 1o [enden Alepuooss Ul Jusu}saau|

$9SS07 JIPaI)) 0} BOUBMO|IY

8|qeAis0sy sueo

8|qeAIs0sy BnusAsy J0BIIU0D

S13SSsv

S8|qenD0aY Jayl0 pue el
sjusjeainb3 yseo pue ysed



(1)

.e5°129'8 ¢ 90z'selL ¢ ceo's0LL ¢ 990'G/8'0L ¢ L18'lle'e ¢ ces'sov'e $
G99°0£9'8 18V'v2L’L 292'20.°L ¥66°€28°01 88¥°112°C z29LLL

z/8 69/ 0.2 TL0°L 62¢ 012'682°C

(1e) (z2) (8) (1) (o1) (g¥s'61)

€/8 89/ Tl 980°} Gge £88'292°C

0¢ ford 9 S (91) z.8'SY

(vzs'v62) (Y1L92v2) (929°€9) (Z18'sp) ¥G2'GGL 0691

¥55'v6¢ 1£9°2¥e 2£9'c9 118Gy (022'ss1) Zv6'se

yL2'8Y 891‘G 89685 9eL‘L. 0/2'SS) 808

viz'sy 891°G 89685 9eL‘LL 0/2'SS) 808

89.°2vE S08°/¥2 009221 £56'221 - 05.'62

005°2¢ 000°0L 000‘Gy 000°0L - -

89z‘0LE $¢  s08'/¢2 $¢  009'/L $  €S6CLL $ - $  06.'62 $

0771 6 s1IteN
MaN adoH

0711 8 s1gxie
MaN adoH

071 L s1iexie
M3N adoH

07119 siIveN
MaN adoH

011 6 sen
MmapN adoH

pelepljosuo)
O77 ‘sejeloossy
aon3

(L¥0Od3¥ .S¥0L1IanVv LNIANIJIANI 33S)

€202 ‘1€ ¥39IN303Aa a3AN3 ¥VIA

S3AILIAILOV 40 LNJIN3LVLS ONINIGINOD

dVv3A 40 AN3 - S13SSV 13N
s})Sa19)U] BUIj[04JUODOUON JO S}OSSY 19N

AUVIA 40 AN3 - LS3YALNI
ONITTOYLNOD OL 379VLINGRILLY S13SSV 13N

sysaueu| Buijjonuod 0} pied spuspniqg
uonnquuod [exded
IBaA JO
Buluuibag - 1sa19ju| Buijjosu0D 0} B|gRINQUNIY SI9SSY 18N

L1STHILNI ONITTOHLNOD
Ol 378v.iNgiiLlV S13SSV 13N NI 3ONVHO

$s07 (8WooU) 18N ,SOUEIPISNS Ul S}salaiul BuljjosjuooUoN

JINODNI .SARIVIAISENS NI SLSTAUFLNI
ONITIOYLNOONON 404389 S13SSV L3N NI JONVHO

sasuadx3 |ejo|
aoueul{ Juswdojanaqg
:sosuadx3 welboid
S3ASN3AdX3

SuleS) pue senuansy [ejoL
anusAeY S80S JOBIUOD
S)UBLIISBAU JOYIO puUE SUEoT
'S99 pajejey pue ‘spuspniq ‘1seely|
SNIVO ANV S3INN3IATY

S3INVJINOD 11d3¥I XV1 S1IMUVIN M3AN 40 STIviad
NOILVYOd¥OD FASRIdAU31LNT 3dOH



(zv)

165006l $  696'05L9 $  eev9lLL $  veLTV9'6 $  8lL./8'8 ¢ L€L'99L'L  $ dV3A 40 AN3 - S13SSV 13N
LvZ 667 el £62°05.°9 899°GL.°/L 0€8°1¥9°'6 £68'0/8°8 65€‘G9. L s)saieu| Bul||0JUODUON JO S18SSY 18N
0GE‘L 9.9 V12 796 688 8.1 UVIA 40 AN3 - 1SIHILNI
ONITTOYLINOD OL I1aVINgI¥LLVY S1ISSV 13N
(o1 (9) (o1) (8) () (12) sisaselu| Buljjouo) 0} pled spuspnid
- - - - - - uonnguuo) [eyde)d
6ee’L 029 69/ 996 1v8 6. JeaA jo
Buluuibag - ysasaiu| Buljjosuo) 0} 8|geINqUNY SI9SSY 19N
1z zL zL 9 6€ (174 LSIHILINI ONITIONINOD
01 319VLNGINLLY S13SSY 13N NI 3DNVHO
(se1Lz12) (cov'sLL) (ozz'izl) (106°€9) (290°98¢) (zev's6l) $507 (sWoou|) 18N ,SalelpIsans ul sysaiaiul Bul|jojuoduoN
9GLZLe GlP'GLL zezieL 106'€9 901 ‘88¢ z5v'861 JINOONI .SANVIAISENS NI SLSIFHILNI
ONITTIOYLNOONON FH0439 S1ISSVY 13N NI IONVHO
(95£'99) (821'82) 89L'G 09¥%'2S (908°062) 896'cY sesuadxg [E10]
(9G6£°99) (821°82) 891 09t°2S (908°062) 896y @oueul uswdojanag
:sasuadx3 weiboid
S3SNadX3
008G} 162'/8 007921 19891 ) 00€'26 0Zy'2ve SUleH pue senusAsy [BJOL
000°0L 000°0L 000°0L 000°0L 000°0L 000°0L snuansy S8OIIBS J0BIUOD
008'Gel $ 16211 $  oov'oll $  19g'90L $  00g'/8 $  o0zv'zee $ SJUBWSAAU| JaY}O pUE SueoT

1994 paje|sy pue ‘spuspniq ‘1saleiu|
SNIVO ANV S3NN3IA3Y

071161 sIeN 011 vl SN O €l SIeN 071 ¢ sen 071 L1 sioen 071101 siee
maN adoH mapN adoH M3N adoH maN adoH maN adoH MaN adoH

(L¥0d3y .sy0llanv LNIAN3I43ANI 33S)
€202 ‘1€ ¥39INID23A @3AN3 ¥V3IA
(A3INNILNOY) SAILIAILOV 40 INIJWILVLS ONINIGINOD
SIINVAINOD LIa3¥D XV.L SLIAMYVIN M3N 40 STIviaa
NOILVHOdHOD ISI¥dYILNT 3dOH



(ev)

¥20°182's $  080'9LL°L $  9s0'68¥EL  $  69EWYL9  $ lsv'sv9’'e  $  82S'PrL9 $ dV3A 40 AN3 - S13SSV 13N
9y 08.°S 6.2°GLL L 102°/8%'E1 ¥69°€Y.'9 915P¥9'6 ¥S8‘ev.L‘9 s)sase)u| Buljjo1juooUON Jo S1essy 18N
8.5 VL2 67l G/9 G96 19 UVIA 40 AN3 - LSIHILNI
ONITIOYLINOD OL 319VINGI¥LLY S13SSV 13N
(2) (9) (o1) (%) (o1 (q) sisaselu| Buljjouo) 0} pled spuspnid
- - - - - - uonnquiuod [exde)
009 €l LSl 9.9 196 699 1eaA jo

Buluuibag - 1saleu| Buljjosuo) 03 B|geINGUNY SIBSSY 19N

(S1) % 8 € 8 oL LSIHILINI ONITIOHLINOD
0.1 3719VLNgRLLY S13SSVY L3N NI 39ONVHD
G80°€S1 (L2°08) (¥08°92) (8ve'ze) (z82'82) (gze'90L) $507 (sWooU|) 18N ,SelelpIsqns Ul sysaiaiul Bul|j0uoduoN
(00L°eS1) S¥.'0G zL8'92 16e'ze 06.'8L GEE'90L JINOONI .SANVIAISENS NI SLSTHILNI
ONITTOYLNOONON 40439 S1ISSV L3N NI IONVHD
9/G'v¥2 896'GS ¥v'06 222'0S 09v'2S (1L16'12) sosuadxg |e10]
9/G'v¥e 896°GS Y06 222'0G 09t'2G (126°22) 8oueuly Juswdojeneq
:sasuadx3 weibold
S3aSN3dX3
9/v'16 €L2'901 9g6z'/91 €15'28 0sz'Lel 7988 sule9 pue senuansy [eJ0L
80Z°LL 00001 000°0} 000°0} 000°0} 10201 BNUBASY SBONIBS JORIUOD
89Z°08 $ €12'96 $ 96z'/G1 $ €152 $ 0sz'izlL $ 16189 $ SJUBWISANU| JBYIO PUE SUEODT

S99 paje|ay pue ‘spuspihiq ‘1saleiu|
SNIVO ANV S3INN3IA3Y

071 L¢ sIeiN 0711 0C sIxen 071161 SIdEeN 0711 81 s1Ien 0711 L1 siven 071191 sIve
MaN adoH mapN adoH MaN adoH maN adoH maN adoH MaN adoH

(L¥0d3y .sy0llanv LNIAN3Id3ANI 33S)
€202 ‘L€ ¥39INID23A a3AN3 ¥V3IA
(A3INNILNOI) SAILIAILOV 40 INIJWILVLS ONINIGINOD
SIINVAINOD LIa3¥D XV.L SLIAMYVIN M3N 40 STIvi3a
NOILVHOdHOD ISI¥dYILNT 3dOH



()

l¥8°1e6'€LL $  82S'vPL'9 $  ee9'zee’cl $ 0 0829zl 8 ¥V3A 40 AN3 - S13SSV L3AN
665°'G29‘LLL €68'¢v.'9 Lve'iee'el 165'6ee’. s}saJaju| Bul||oJjUOOUON JO S19SSY 18N
812'90€°C G/9 z68°L €zl dV3IA 40 AN3 - LSTYILNI
ONITIOYLINOD OL 319V.INgGI¥LLY S13SSV 13N
(Lv2'61) (V) (o1) (€) sisaselu| Buljosuo) o} pled spuspnid
G68°C 002 Shb'L 052 uonnguiuo) [eyden
(A AN WA - - - JesA 1O

Buiuuibag - 1saisyu| Buljjosuo) 03 B|geINUNY SIBSSY 19N

166Gy (¥2) (ep) (v2) LSTHILNI ONITIOHLINOD
01 319V.LNgIYLLY S13SSY 13N NI 39NVHD

(022's%8) 0S0°LS2 16182y 800°L¥T $s07 (swooU]) 18N ,Seuelpisangs ul sysaisiul BuljouoduoN

122°168 (v20°162) (ovz'szy) (ze0'1t2) JINODNI .SARVIAISENS NI SLSIUILNI

ONITTOYLNOONON 380439 S13ISSV 1IN NI IONVHO

6YLLLL L 015882 £€1'€/S 15€°12e sosuadx3 [e10L
6L LLL L 0¥5°88¢ £€.1°€1S 16¢€‘1ee aoueul4 Juswdojaneq
:sasuadx3 weibold
S3ASN3AdX3
9/€£209°C 90%° /€ £6v'Syl G2e08 sule9 pue senusasy [ejo)
60,292 06.'82 000°0L 000°0L SNUBANSY SBONIBS J0ENJUOD
119'vE€‘T $ 9/9'8 $ €6v'sel $ GeeoL $ SJUBIISBAU] JBYIO PUE SUEOT

S99 paje|ey pue ‘spuspiniq ‘1seleiu|
SNIVO ANV S3INN3IA3IY

paulquiod 0711 G6¢ svelN 0711 V¢ sIvdeiN 071 €¢ sIveN
M3N adoH MaN adoH maN adoH

(LY0d3y .syO0LIanV LNIAN3I43ANI 33S)
€202 ‘L€ ¥39INTD3A A3ANT JV3IA
(A3INNILNOID) SAILIAILOVY 40 INIJNILVLS ONINIGINOD
SIINVAINOD LIA3¥D XVL S1IMYVIN M3N 40 STIv.L3d
NOILVHOdHOD SI¥dYILNT IdOH



HOPE ENTERPRISE CORPORATION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

ECD ASSOCIATES, LLC
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT)

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investment in Subsidiary
Secondary Capital of HFCU

Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Total Liabilities

CAPITAL
Managing Members
Investor Members
Retained Earnings (Deficit)
Total Capital

Total Liabilities and Capital

ECD
ECD Associates,
ECD New Associates, LLC
Markets, LLC LLC Eliminations Consolidated
$ 174395  $ 256,055 $ - 3 430,450
- 3,505,000 (3,505,000) -
2,975,000 - - 2,975,000
$ 3,149,395 $ 3,761,055 $ (3,505,000) $ 3,405,450
$ 82 % - 5 - $ (82)
(82) - - (82)
100 1,000 - 1,100
11,789,632 2,874,228 (3,505,000) 11,158,860
(8,640,255) 885,827 - (7,754,428)
3,149,477 3,761,055 (3,505,000) 3,405,532
$ 3,149,395 $ 3,761,055 $ (3,505,0000 $ 3,405,450

(45)



HOPE ENTERPRISE CORPORATION
ECD ASSOCIATES, LLC
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT)

ECD
ECD Associates,
ECD New Associates, LLC
Markets, LLC LLC Eliminations Consolidated
REVENUES
Interest, Dividends, and Related Fees:
Loans and Other Investments $ 29,750 ' $ 19250 $ (19,250) $ 29,750
Total Revenues and Gains 29,750 19,250 (19,250) 29,750
EXPENSES
Program Expenses:
Development Finance 308 500 - 808
Total Expenses 308 500 - 808
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE

NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS IN

SUBSIDIARIES' INCOME 29,442 18,750 (19,250) 28,942
Noncontrolling Interests in Subsidiaries' Net

(Income) Loss 23,203 (6,273) - 16,930
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO

CONTROLLING INTEREST 52,645 12,477 (19,250) 45,872
Net Assets Attributable to Controlling Interest -

Beginning of Year 3,610,231 2,157,652 (3,505,000) 2,262,883
Dividends Paid to Controlling Interest (19,250) (19,545) 19,250 (19,545)
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO CONTROLLING

INTEREST - END OF YEAR 3,643,626 2,150,584 (3,505,000) 2,289,210
Net Assets of Noncontrolling Interests (494,231) 1,610,471 - 1,116,322
NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 3149395 $ 3,761,055 $ (3,505000) $ 3,405,532

(46)
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—_— Investment advisory services are offered through CliftonLarsonAllen Wealth Advisors, LLC, an
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e SEC-registered investment advisor.



